Greater Cleveland 1240 West 6th Street
Regional Transit Authority Cleveland, Ohio 44113-1302
Phone: 216-566-5100

riderta.com

MEETING NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the following meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Greater Cleveland
Regional Transit Authority will take place on Tuesday, February 25, 2025 in the Board Room of
the Authority, 1240 West Sixth Street, Cleveland, OH 44113 for consideration of the listed items
and such other items that may properly come before the Board and be acted upon. This meeting
will be live streamed on RTA's Board Page www.RideRTA.com/board via the meeting date for
staff and members of the public. Members of the public may attend in person.

The meeting package will be posted on RTA’'s website at (www.riderta.com/board), on RTA’s
Facebook page, and RTA’s Twitter page.

9:00 AM. Board of Trustees Meeting — agenda attached

»
érﬂ/fé {4,_, /%

/ India L. Birdsong Terry

General Manager, Chief Executive Officer

IBT:tab
Attachment

Scan this QR code to access the meeting schedule, live streams and meeting materials.




10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

ik

REVISED AGENDA

RTA Board of Trustees Meeting
Tuesday, February 25, 2025

9:00 a.m.
Call to order
Roll Call
Certification regarding notice of meeting
Approval of the January 21, 2025 Board Meeting minutes

Public comments (2 minutes) on Agenda and Non-Agenda items:

Please state your name and city of residence
a. Inperson
b. Phone: 440-276-4600
c. Web form (1 comment limit) Comments will be forwarded to Board and

staff

Board Governance Committee report

Operational Planning & Infrastructure Committee report
e Chair: Ms. Lauren R. Welch

Organizational, Services & Performance Monitoring Committee report
e Chair: Mayor Anthony D. Biasiotta

Audit, Safety Compliance and Real Estate Committee report
e  Chair: Mayor Paul A. Koomar

External and Stakeholder Relations and Advocacy Committee report
¢ Chair: Rev. Charles P. Lucas

Civilian Oversight Committee (COC)
e Board Liaison: Ms. Lauren R. Welch

Community Advisory Committee (CAC)
e Board Liaison: Ms. Deidre McPherson

Ad Hoc Committee reports

Introduction of new employees and announcement of promotions - Ida Marshall,
Senior Manager of Talent Acquisition



RTA Board of Trustees
February 25, 2025

Page 2

15. Executive Session Requested — To review the negotiations concerning the

compensation/terms and conditions of employment for GCRTA'’s (union)
employees.

16. Introduction of resolutions:

A

2025-23 - Expressing appreciation to Anthony D. Biasiotta for his service
as a member of the Board of Trustees of the Greater Cleveland Regional
Transit Authority and extending best wishes for many years to come

2025-24 - Authorizing Contract No. 2024-220 with GIRO, Inc. to provide
HASTUS software maintenance and support services for a three-year
period in a total amount not to exceed $1,089,936.00 (General Fund,
Information Technology Department budget)

2025-25 - Authorizing Contract No. 2024-179 with Genfare, LLC to
provide farebox collection software support services for a period of one
year in an amount not to exceed $61,425.00 with two, one-year options in
amounts not to exceed $63,268.00 and $65,166.00, respectively, for a
total contract amount not to exceed $189,859.00 (General Fund,
Management Information Services Department budget)

2025-26 - Authorizing a change order to exercise an option under
Contract No. 2020-046 with New Flyer of America, Inc. for the purchase
and delivery of six (6) five (5) door 60-ft. articulated BRT coaches, as
specified, for an amount not to exceed $7,956,739.02 (RTA Development
Fund, Fleet Management Department budget)

2025-27 - Authorizing Contract No. 2024-195 with Railworks Track
Services, LLC for Brookpark Yard Tracks improvements in an amount not
to exceed $2,589,826.00 (RTA Development Fund, Engineering & Project
Development Department budget)

2025-28 - Authorizing Contract No. 2024-205 with Standard Contracting &
Engineering, Inc. for Brookpark Rail Shop modifications in an amount not

to exceed $2,893,100.00 (RTA Development Fund, Engineering & Project
Development Department budget)

2025-29 - Authorizing Contract No. 2024-154 with Omax Corporation for
the furnishing of a waterjet cutting machine in an amount not to exceed
$174,084.00 (RTA Development Fund, Fleet Management Department
budget)

. 2025-30 - Authorizing Contract No. 2024-210 with Petroleum Traders

Corporation for the furnishing of approximately 1,000,000 gallons of Ultra
Low Sulfur Diesel fuel, as specified and as required, for each year of the
three years contract term, at a cost of minus $.0333 per gallon for year
one, minus $.0308 per gallon below the OPIS index for year two, and
minus $.0283 per gallon below the OPIS index for year three (General
Fund, Fleet Management Department budget)



RTA Board of Trustees
February 25, 2025

Page 3

2025-31 - Amending Resolution No. 2024-075 to remove the vendor
name “Sam Schwartz Consulting, LLC” and replace it with “T.Y. Lin
International”

2025-32 - Approving the 2025 Internal Audit Plan

2025-33 - Amending Section 222.05 of the Codified Rules and
Regulations of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority and
amending the Operating Procedures for the Civilian Oversight Committee

2025-34 - Re-appointment of David Morris and Rebecca Wharton to the
Civilian Oversight Committee

2025-35 - Authorizing a renewal lease agreement with Downtown
Cleveland, Inc. for a dog park at Settler's Landing Rapid Transit Station

2026-36 - Authorizing an agreement with the City of Shaker Heights for a
period of one year beginning January 1, 2025 in an amount not to exceed
$282,169.68 for landscape maintenance and parking lot snow removal
(General Fund, Programming & Planning Department budget) and in an
amount not to exceed $37,894.97 for planting replacement landscaping in
conjunction with the Authority’s shaker boulevard shelter project (RTA
Development Fund, Programming & Planning Department budget)

17. Secretary-Treasurer’s Report — Rajan D. Gautam, Deputy General Manager,
Finance, Secretary-Treasurer

18.

19.

20.

a.

b.

g.
h.

General Fund Revenue — January 31, 2025 compared to January 31,
2024

General Fund Revenue - period ending January 31, 2025 compared to
budget

Sales & Use Tax Receipts Report budgeted during 2024, actual receipts
through February 2025 \'

Inventory of Treasury Investments as of January 31, 2025

Debt Service Schedule and Status of Bond Retirement Fund (cash basis)
as of January 31, 2025

Summary of Investment Performance, Year to Date through January 31,
2025

Report on Investment Earnings (cash basis) as of January 31, 2025
Composition of Investment Portfolio as of January 31, 2025

Banking and Financial Relationships as of January 31, 2025

General Manager's Report — India Birdsong Terry, General Manager, Chief
Executive Officer

President’s Report

Old Business



Minutes
RTA Board of Trustees Meeting

9:04 a.m. January 21, 2025

Board Members: Koomar (Chair), Welch (Vice Chair), Biasiotta, McPherson, Pacetti, Sleasman,

Weiss

Not present: Elder, Love, Lucas

Staff: Biggar, Birdsong Terry, Burney, Caver, Dangelo, Davidson, Fields, Fleig, Ford-Marshall,
Freilich, Gautam, Gibbons, Jupina, Kirkland, Miller, Myers, Reed, Rusnov, Schipper, Talley, Walker

Minor, Young

Public: Keeler, Maur, Sprenger, Yeager

The meeting was called to order at 9:04 a.m. There were seven (7) Board members present.

It was advised that notice of this meeting had been posted more than twenty-four hours in advance of
the meeting, that the usual notification had been given the news media and other interested persons,
and that all requirements of the Ohio Revised Code and Rules and Bylaws of this Board regarding

notice of meeting had been complied with.

Minutes

The minutes from the December 17, 2024 Board Meeting had been previously distributed and
reviewed, and asked whether there were any additions and/or corrections. There were no
corrections. It was moved and seconded. The minutes were approved.

Public Comments — Agenda and Non-Agenda ltems

The public comment section has been consolidated to include agenda and non-agenda items.

1.

Brianna Springer — Parma, OH — Brianna has been a paratransit rider for 2 years. Brianna
moved from Lorain County to Cuyahoga County for better access to paratransit services.
Brianna thanked RTA for the new Paratransit app.

Karyssa — Karyssa has used paratransit for 15 years. Karyssa asked if rides can be tracked.

Janet Keeler — Janet is the Director of Community Development at the Cuyahoga County
Developmental Disabilities. Janet attended an RTA TransitStat program and as a result
created a performance management program in 2010 called DD SupportStat. CCDD trains
hundreds of people each year on RTA travel services. Janet supports the new paratransit app
and purchase of new paratransit vehicles and asks for the Board's approval. The new app will
bring tracking capabilities up to speed with other services like Uber. Customers can stay
inside while waiting for their rides and can monitor them on the app.

Airric Stewart — Airric said considering the cold temperatures it would be good to have service
from the western part of Harvard heading east to go to Pinecrest Shopping Center and not
have to alight at Tri-C and walk. RTA hasn’t done a good job mapping out the NextGen
routes. Only small portions of his comments make it into the minutes. The Customer Service
line is still cutting callers off. Airric’s previous route suggested comments (15A and 48A



RTA Board of Trustees
January 21, 2025
Page 2 of 8

reinstatement) should be added to the minutes. These routes access work, school and
hospitals. No study has been done that RTA’s route assessment is correct.

Mayor Koomar said that management has looked at the route recommendations. The goal is
to serve the greatest number of riders. Some of the recommendations cuts off service to
critical facilities like hospitals. Comments will be taken into consideration. Staff will continue
to monitor all routes. Minutes are summarized. Comments can be submitted on the webform

for word for word submission.

5. Larry Rodriguez — Larry had to leave but left his comments. Larry asked that paratransit wait
times and call times be improved. Also, bus door audio alerts are not working.

6. Art Cenoia — Parma, OH — (webform) — Regarding the W25th St. BRT project: Dedicated bus
lanes along the entire route are essential. Without them, this expensive effort will not improve
transit throughput. Buses will continue to be snarled in traffic jams in the West Side Market
area. “Bus Rapid Transit” will be “rapid” in name only.

7. Kim Goodman — Euclid, OH — (webform) - The paratransit website is easier to use but it
doesn't always give me the right time | asked for. In the morning | used to get on the back car
of the Redline because | get off at W 25th. Now | have to walk all the way to the front door of
the front car so | can show my pass before boarding. This is a lot of walking for me and other
disabled people. | wish | could just get on the back car at Windermere so | can get off at the

back door and be closer to the elevator at W 25th.

8. Joseph Edward Schwarten — Cleveland, OH — (webform) - After seeing that the Blue and
Green line stations will be getting "Real-time" arrival signs. Why don't the Red Line, Healthline
Stations and other Transit hubs get the same thing. | have seen "Real-Time" monitors up in
Tower City. This should be brought to every Red line station since most of them have monitors
in them anyways. They should be showing train arrival times on them. Especially now with the
weather being cold and most of the monitors are inside the stations it will let folks know when
they have to go outside to get on the train. As for the Healthline stations, | believe the same
ones that you have at places like East Roadway and Superior will be fine. RTA needs to be
treating all their "Rapid" stations and transit hubs like proper stations and hubs. Not just fancy
shelters with little to no information. This also applies to the new BRT stations being built on
W.25th. GCRTA, if you are gonna do something, make sure you do it the right way. Also, we
need to make sure one of the busiest bus corridors, aka Detroit to Lorain on W.25, has bus

lanes in that project.

9. Chris Martin — Cleveland OH — (webform) - Good job finally getting validators installed at
Tower City. Now, let's get smart cards, contactless fare payment, and fare-capping. Good job,
also, on continuing to close the operator shortage. | hope we will soon see a strong collective
bargaining agreement between you and ATU 268 that ensures your new hires are valued
workers. | keep hearing your cops are harassing the unhoused at Stokes Windemere? What's
up with that? Does the Trillium contract for CNG maintenance at Triskett mean the agency will
be able to stop running trolley buses on regular routes? My understanding is that the inability
to fuel CNG motorcoaches at Triskett has been preventing their use in service.

It's very funny to me that the Community Advisory Committee doesn't want to hear from the
community through public comment. It's right in line with this Board's decision to halve the
amount of public comment it allows. But at least y'all meet more than just 4 times per year.
How is this board going to accomplish its goal of expanding bus service on weekends and at
night? How will the agency stave off its looming fiscal cliff? How will this board help



RTA Board of Trustees
January 21, 2025
Page 3 of 8

25Connects be a success by ensuring dedicated bus lanes are integrated throughout the
entire route? Will you lobby the City of Cleveland and Councilor Kerry McCormack to convince

them of the benefit of bus lanes?

10. Jenna Thomas — Cleveland. OH - (webform) - Good morning to members of the Board & RTA
staff. | regret not being able to be there in person this morning but hope you are all staying
warm! Yesterday, Clevelanders for Public Transit launched a letter-writing campaign calling
for bus lanes all along W. 25th. | was so proud to see dozens and dozens of riders submit
hundreds of letters to this Board and other decision-makers advocating for the infrastructure
that would improve their lives. I'm also proud to see GCRTA more firmly supporting designated
bus lanes between Detroit & Lorain, and sincerely hope you are fighting for transit riders
behind closed doors when these critical decisions are being made.

| hope that, as final design decisions are made for W. 25th, GCRTA considers its riders and
operators first and foremost: the service workers that clock in at business along W. 25th, the
new mothers taking their babies to appointments at Metro, the senior who needs to get to the
grocery store. When it works, public transit is a beautiful thing. Infrastructure built for the
working class, for your incredible operators, for the average Clevelander is worth fighting for
and CPT is excited to fight for it alongside you all.

11. Isaac Shimsky-Agosto — Cleveland, OH — (webform) - As a Blue Line rider, it is great to see
the improvements being done. The mobile ticket scanners at Tower City have made using that
station much smoother. The plans for improvements to the stations east of Shaker Square
look great. The arrival screens at the rebuilt Van Aiken Station will be much appreciated. It
would also be appreciated if similar screens could be installed at Shaker Square.

Committee Reports

Mayor Koomar asked for Board members to give Tony Garofoli, Executive Director, Internal Audit
their suggestions on the 2025 Audit Plan or to notify him if they don't have any input.

Introduction of New Employees/Promotions

Ms. Marshall, Senior Manager, Talent Acquisition introduced the new employees and promotions.
There were 14 new hires and 7 promotions.

Introduction of Resolutions

A. 2025-1 - Expressing congratulations to the employees of the Greater Cleveland
Regional Transit Authority who retired during the fourth quarter of 2024, the adoption of
which was moved by Mayor Koomar, seconded by Mayor Weiss and approved by
unanimous vote.

There are 14 retirees this quarter. Peter Lariccia, Electronics Technician at Central
Rail Maintenance braved the cold temperatures to receive his proclamation in person.

B. 2025-2 - Authorizing Contract No. 2024-155 with the Great Lakes Construction Co. for
Project 19.64 - W. 65" Stairway and Platform Repair in an amount not to exceed
$644,172.50 (RTA Development Fund, Engineering & Project Development
Department budget), the adoption of which was moved by Ms. Welch, seconded by Mr.
Sleasman and approved by unanimous vote.



RTA Board of Trustees
January 21, 2025

Page 4 of 8

C. 2025-3 - Authorizing Contract No. 2024-141 with Tolar Manufacturing, Inc. for Light

Rail Shelter Replacement in an amount not to exceed $826,750.00 (RTA Development
Fund, Programming & Planning Department budget), the adoption of which was moved
by Mr. Sleasman, seconded by Mayor Biasiotta. A roll call was requested. There were
six (6) ayes and one abstention by Mayor Weiss. It passes.

2025-4 - Authorizing Contract No. 2024-146 with Connectpoint, Inc. for the purchase of
electronic signhage for Light Rail Shelter Replacement in an amount not to exceed
$380,055.00 with an option for the purchase of up to forty-three push-to-talk buttons in
an amount not to exceed $97,610.00, for a total contract amount not to exceed
$477,665.00 (RTA Development Fund, Programming & Planning Department budget),
the adoption of which was moved by Mayor Biasiotta, seconded by Mr. Sleasman. A
roll call was requested. There were six (6) ayes and one abstention by Mayor Weiss.

It passes.

2025-5 - Authorizing Contract No. 2024-143 with Northeast Ohio Trenching Service,
Inc. for Project No. 18.82B — Light Rail Shelter Replacement (other amenities) in an
amount not to exceed $293,000.00 (RTA Development Fund, Engineering & Project
Development Department budget), the adoption of which was moved by Mr. Sleasman,
seconded by Mayor Biasiotta. A roll call was requested. There were six (6) ayes and
one abstention by Mayor Weiss. It passes.

2025-6 - Authorizing Contract No. 2024-222 with Trillium Transportation Fuels, LLC
dba trillium CNG to provide Triskett CNG operations and maintenance services for a
three-year period in an amount not to exceed $1,080,000.00 (General Fund, Triskett
District budget), the adoption of which was moved by Ms. Pacetti, seconded by Mayor
Biasiotta and approved by unanimous vote.

Ms. Terry asked staff to address the public comments about this contract and the use
of the trolley coaches on alternate routes. Dr. Caver said this contract will provide the
operation and maintenance for Triskett. The trolleys are not CNG vehicles. They run
on diesel and are used outside of downtown. We have a surplus of trolleys due to
going from 3 to 1 trolley routes. The use of trolleys and the availability of CNG is not
related. Mr. Schipper added that there is enough capacity to fuel all of the CNG buses
at both bus districts.

2025-7 - Authorizing Contract No. 2024-159 with KS Associates, Inc. for Project 20.26
— On-Call Surveying Services — Phase 7 in an amount not to exceed $250,000.00 for a
period of 36 months (RTA Capital and/or RTA Development Fund, Engineering &
Project Development Department budget), the adoption of which was moved by Ms.
McPherson, seconded by Mr. Sleasman and approved by unanimous vote.

2025-8 - Authorizing Contract No. 2024-135 with RGT Services LLC dba the Fowler
Company for Project No. 60E — East 120" Street Substation Replacement in an
amount not to exceed $7,194,208.00 (RTA Development Fund, Engineering & Project
Development Department budget), the adoption of which was moved by Ms. Welch,
seconded by Mr. Sleasman and approved by unanimous vote.

2025-9 - Authorizing Contract No. 2024-196 with Vehicle Maintenance Program for the
furnishing of motorcoach filters, as specified and as required, for a period of two years
in an amount not to exceed $124,110.00 (General Fund, Fleet Management



RTA Board of Trustees
January 21, 2025

Page 5 of 8

Department budget), the adoption of which was moved by Mayor Koomar, seconded
by Ms. Welch and approved by unanimous vote.

2025-10 - Authorizing Contract No. 2024-158 with Mott MacDonald, LLC for Project
20.14 — On-Call Signal Engineering Services - 2024 in an amount not to exceed
$450,000.00 for a period of 24 months (RTA Capital and/or Development Funds,
Engineering & Project Development Department budget), the adoption of which was
moved by Mayor Weiss, seconded by Mr. Sleasman and approved by unanimous vote.

2025-11 - Authorizing Contract No. 2024-203 with American Bus & Accessories, Inc.
for the purchase and delivery of 17 paratransit coaches, as specified, for a total
contract amount not to exceed $2,553,536.00 (RTA Development Fund, Fleet
Management Department budget), the adoption of which was moved by Ms. Welch,
seconded by Ms. Pacetti and approved by unanimous vote.

Mayor Koomar asked for the timeline on the new coaches. Mr. Davidson said the first
coach will arrive in September of this year.

2025-12 - Authorizing Contract No. 2024-174 with Westward Sales, Inc. for the
purchase of mobile routers in an amount not to exceed $203,940.00 for 60 units and
an option to purchase up to 60 additional units at an amount not to exceed
$203,940.00, for a total contract amount not to exceed $407,880.00 (RTA
Deveiopment Fund, Information Technology Department budget), the adoption of
which was moved by Mayor Koomar, seconded by Ms. Welch and approved by
unanimous vote.

2025-13 - Authorizing Contract No. 2024-223 with Masabi, LLC to provide fare
collection validators in an amount not to exceed $324,980.00 for 30 car sets and an
option to purchase up to 30 additional car sets in an amount not to exceed
$239,400.00, for a total contract amount not to exceed $564,380.00 (RTA
Development Fund, Information Technology Department budget), the adoption of
which was moved by Mr. Sleasman, seconded by Mayor Biasiotta and approved by
unanimous vote.

2025-14 - Authorizing Contract No. 2024-212 with Oracle America, Inc. to provide
Oracle software licenses, maintenance, and support services for a period of one year
in an amount not to exceed $700,586.04 (General Fund, Management Information
Services Department budget), the adoption of which was moved by Mayor Weiss,
seconded by Ms. Pacetti and approved by unanimously vote.

2025-15 - Authorizing an increase to Contract No. 2023-030 with Suburban
Maintenance & Construction, Inc. for Project 62A — Rehabilitation of Track/Platform
Bridges over W. 117" Street in the amount of $116,303.23 for a total contract amount
of $8,917,566.09 and reinstating the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer’s
change order signing authority in its entirety (RTA Development Fund, Engineering &
Project Development Department budget), the adoption of which was moved by Mayor
Koomar, seconded by Mr. Sleasman and approved by unanimous vote.

2025-16 - Authorizing an increase to Contract No. 2023-155 with the Great Lakes
Construction Co. for Project 52N — Tower City East Portal Rehabilitation in the amount
of $98,554.40, for a total contract amount of $16,309,018.12, and reinstating the
General Manager, Chief Executive Officer's change order signing authority in its



RTA Board of Trustees
January 21, 2025

Page 6 of 8

entirety (RTA Development Fund, Engineering & Project Development Department
budget), the adoption of which was moved by Ms. McPherson, seconded by
Mr. Sleasman and approved by unanimous vote.

2025-17 - Authorizing Contract No. 2024-219 with GIRO, Inc. to provide HASTUS
software hosting services for a period of one year in an amount not to exceed
$213,744.00 (General Fund, Information Technology Department budget), the adoption
of which was moved by Mr. Sleasman, seconded by Ms. Welch and approved by

unanimous vote.

2025-18 - Authorizing Contract No. 2024-221 with Motorola Solutions, Inc. for Motorola
radio equipment and software annual maintenance in amounts not to exceed
$114,936.64 for year one, $120,683.44 for year two, and $126,717.61 for year three,
for a total contract amount not to exceed $362,337.63 for the three-year period
(General Fund, Information Technology Department budget), the adoption of which
was moved by Mayor Koomar, seconded by Ms. Welch and approved by unanimous

vote.

2025-19 - Authorizing Contract No. 2024-165 with Trapeze Software Group, Inc. to
provide “PASS” mobile application licensing and implementation services in an amount
not to exceed $170,922.00 (RTA Development Fund, Information Technology
Department budget), the adoption of which was moved by Mr. Sieasman, seconded by
Ms. McPherson and approved by unanimous vote.

2025-20 - Authorizing the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority to enter into a
purchase and sale agreement with Flaherty & Collins Development, LLC, for the
proposed sale of a 1.35-acre parcel of real property located at 10300 Detroit Avenue,
Cleveland, Ohio, the adoption of which was moved by Mayor Koomarr, seconded by
Mr. Sleasman and approved by unanimous vote.

2025-21 - Contract for sale of 0.0003 acres of land to the City of Twinsburg for the
public purpose of highway construction and warranty deed, the adoption of which was
moved by Mayor Koomar, seconded by Ms. McPherson and approved by unanimous

vote.

2025-22 - Amending the Operating Guidelines for the Community Advisory Committee,
the adoption of which was moved by Mayor Koomar, seconded by Ms. McPherson and

approved by unanimous vote.

Secretary-Treasurer's Report

Rajan D. Gautam, Deputy General Manager of Finance and Secretary-Treasurer gave the report.
This information is from the Bureau of Labor Statistics and Federal Reserve. From a high of 9.1% in
June 2022, the inflation rate at the end of December 2024 was 2.9%. The Federal Open Market
Committee (FOMC) reduced interest rates to 4.5% effective December 18. They are scheduled to

meet Dec. 28" and 29" to determine future actions.

December 2024 ridership was 7.8% higher compared to December 2023 levels. YTD ridership is
10.8% higher compared to.pre-COVID levels. We remain 7.3 million rides lower compared to 2019 or
22 7%. The ridership for 2024 is 24.8 million. Ridership for 2019 was 32.1 million. Passenger fares
for December 2024 were 7.3% lower than December 2023 levels due to the timing of student fare



RTA Board of Trustees
January 21, 2025
Page 7 of 8

cards and U-pass receipts. Compared to pre COVID levels, 2019 YTD fares were $42.8 million, 2024
was $32.9 million, which is $9.9 million lower or 23.1%.

January 2025 sales tax receipts were 0.2% higher compared to January 2024. Category details for
January are not yet available. December 2024 receipts included $22.5 million of sales tax collected
for September activity. The State of Ohio reimbursed $3 million to RTA for the sales tax holiday.
Ohio’s sales tax holiday was from July 30 — August 8, 2024. The reimbursement was received in
December. YTD comparing 2024 to 2023, eleven of the 23 categories that make up the sales tax
base was positive. Online sales were 10.9% higher. Regular and statewide sales were 0.6% lower.

Motor vehicles and watercraft were 2.1% lower.

Selected Data
A revised version of the debt service scheduled was issued.

Total Long-Term Debt — 12/31/2024 $22.3 million

Average Investment Yield — YTD 4.45%
Cash and Investments

Unrestricted (General Fund) $33.6 million

Restricted $329.7 million

TOTAL CASH AND INVESTMENTS $363.3 million

Mayor Weiss asked about the December 2024 sales tax. There is a 3-month delay. Mr. Gautam said
YTD 2024 was in line with 2023 levels. December 2024 included the $3 million sales tax holiday
reimbursement. The December 2024 receipts were 13.6% higher once the sales tax reimbursement
is included. They were relatively flat if the reimbursement is excluded.

General Manager, CEQO Report

India L. Birdsong Terry, General Manager, CEO gave the report. Code Book Section 840.09
authorizes the CEO to offer fare incentives or complimentary rides to promote ridership through
Temporary Promotional Programs. The results must be reported annually. Two programs benefited
from this program last year with a 50% discount. The total amount of discounts was $5,900. They
were the Homeless Standdown and Summer of Cuyahoga.

New Information Technology Director, Charles Morgan, llI started January 6. He previously worked at
PNC Bank. He will report directly to Dr. Caver, Deputy General Manager of Operations. He will
develop the IT department’s strategic plan and manage large scale IT projects. Mr. Morgan
expressed how excited he is to be here and to drive technology solutions with his staff. Several RTA
employees have years of service milestones. Chara Stanley, Hayden Bus Operator has 30 years of
service. Leonard Brown, Hayden Bus Operator has 33 years of service. Peter Lariccia, Electronic
Technician has 35 years of service and Nancy Boberek, Database Analyst has 43 years of service.

GCRTA was featured on WKYC 3 Good Company to promote RTA’s 50th anniversary celebration.
Ms. Terry was interviewed where she shared RTA's history, upcoming events surrounding the
milestone anniversary including special bus wraps. Several employees joined RTA’s ERG Latinos
Unidos and the Northeast Ohio Hispanic Center for Economic Development for La Gran Parranda on
December 20. This event is comprised of traditional caroling and visits to local Latin-owned business.
Participants used public transportation to get to each venue showcasing RTA's accessibility to the
community. The event culminated at the soft opening at Centro Vilia on W. 25" Street.



RTA Board of Trustees
January 21, 2025
Page 8 of 8

RTA received the Healthy Business Council of Ohio (HBCO) platinum level award for a healthy
worksite. This is the highest honor. RTA received the gold level award in 2023. The HBCO program
annually recognizes Ohio employers that have demonstrated commitment to their employees’
wellbeing by providing comprehensive worksite health promotion and wellness programs.

The Ohio Department of Transportation (ODOT) and Ohio Environmental Protection Agency (OEPA)
awarded GCRTA approximately $2.7 million in grant funds from the Diesel Emission Reduction Grant
(DERG) program. Funds will be used for the replacement of five model year 2014 diesel powered
buses with five new model year 2025 Compressed Natural Gas (CNG) buses. This grant is in line
with increasing investment in energy, enhancement in services and reduction of fuel emissions.
NOACA awarded $12 million in State Fiscal Year 2026-2029 TIP grant funds to GCRTA. Funds will
be used for GCRTA'’s Rail Car Replacement Program. NOACA'’s total commitment to the RCRP has

now increased from $24.0 million to $28.8 million.

Mayor Koomar asked for the timeline of the next purchase of railcars. Ms. Terry said as soon as the
funds are drawn down which could be in the spring. Staff will come to the Board in February to revise
the budget for the railcar program. Currently the budget is $393 million. That number is expected to

go up to $450 million.

President's Report

The Board will hold a retreat February 27, 2025 at Corporate College East. Mayor Koomar and Ms.
Terry met with officials at the Cleveland Clinic which could result in some additional routes. Board

members were urged to turn in their Internal Audit forms.

Upcoming Meetings

The next regular Board meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, February 25, 2025 in the Board Room of
the Authority, Root-McBride Building, 1240 West Sixth Street, Cleveland, Ohio 44113. This meeting
will be live streamed on RTA’s Board page (www.RideRTA.com/board) by selecting the meeting date.

The public is welcome to attend in person.

The meeting was adjourned at 10:01 a.m.

President

Altest:

Secretary-Treasurer



RESOLUTION NO. 2025-23

EXPRESSING APPRECIATION TO ANTHONY D. BIASIOTTA FOR HIS
SERVICE AS A MEMBER OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE GREATER
CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY AND EXTENDING BEST
WISHES FOR MANY YEARS TO COME

WHEREAS, Anthony D. Biasiotta has served as a member of the Board of Trustees of
the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (“GCRTA”) for three (3) years, having been
appointed by the Cuyahoga County Mayors and City Managers Association, for a term
beginning in March 2022; and

WHEREAS, Anthony D. Biasiotta has been a faithful and dedicated Board Trustee
during his tenure, serving on several committees and as the Chair of the Organizational,
Services and Performance Monitoring Committee, and Chair of the Nominating Committee; and

WHEREAS, Anthony D. Biasiotta provided his keen insight and expertise as the Mayor
of Seven Hills to the GCRTA Board of Trustees; and

WHEREAS, during his tenure as a member of the GCRTA Board of Trustees, Anthony
D. Biasiotta was a strong advocate for public transit and demonstrated his unwavering
commitment to local, regional and state collaboration in order to achieve the best possible

outcomes for all; and

WHEREAS, Anthony D. Biasiotta has performed with great diligence, insight and
passion in serving the citizens of Cuyahoga County.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the Board of Trustees hereby extends its sincere appreciation to
Anthony D. Biasiotta for his dedicated service to GCRTA and his community.

Section 2. That the members of the Board of Trustees express their gratitude to
Anthony D. Biasiotta for his diligence in the performance of his responsibilities to the residents

of Cuyahoga County.

Section 3. That the Board of Trustees offers its best wishes to Anthony D. Biasiotta on
his future endeavors.

Section 4. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: February 25, 2025
President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



326

STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS

Form 100- @ Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

01-12-22

TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
CONTRACT: HASTUS SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE AND SUPPORT 2025-24

VENDOR: GIRO, INC. 2025
AMOUNT: NOT TO EXCEED $1,089,936.00 FOR A THREE-YEAR

Date: February 20,

Initiator: Information
Technology
Department

PERIOD

ACTION REQUEST:
Approval Review/Comment Information Only Other

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will allow the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
(“Authority”) to enter into a contract with GIRO, Inc. (“GIRO") to provide continuing
maintenance and support services for the Authority’s dispatch, operator self-service, and
scheduling software (“HASTUS”) for a period of three years.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The Authority has an ongoing and recurring need for
maintenance and support of its HASTUS software. The Authority relies on its HASTUS
software to manage operator work performance, scheduling, daily work and payroll. The
software was implemented in 2012. Due to the critical nature of this system, it must be able to
function without significant downtime or delays. The maintenance and support agreement
assures timely expert support to resolve any delay-threatening problems.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: R.C. 306.43(H)(3) provides that competitive procedures
are not required when the expenditure is for a renewal or renegotiation of a lease or license for
telecommunications or electronic data processing equipment, services, or systems, or for the
upgrade of such equipment, services, or systems, or for the maintenance thereof, as supplied
by the original source or its successors or assigns. GIRO is the original provider of the
Authority’s HASTUS software and developed the software on a proprietary basis, thereby
making GIRO the only source for modifications, development and maintenance services for the
software. The Authority has an ongoing need for a maintenance and support agreement in
place for its HASTUS software.

The Procurement Department requested a proposal from GIRO on November 21, 2024. A
proposal was received on December 3, 2024. GIRO offered to provide dispatch, operator self-
service, and scheduling software maintenance and support services for the Authority’s
HASTUS software for a three-year period in amounts not to exceed $345,737.00 for year one,
$363,024.00 for year two, and $381,175.00 for year three, for a total contract amount not to
exceed $1,089,936.00. The Information Technology, Intelligent Transportation Systems and
Procurement Departments reviewed the proposal for adherence to the technical requirements.
The proposal submitted by GIRO is approximately 1% below the independent cost estimate of
$1,096,000.00, which was based on historical pricing.

A cost analysis has been performed, and the Procurement Department has determined that the
negotiated price is fair and reasonable to the Authority.

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGROUND: All Affirmative Action requirements have been
met. A 0% DBE goal was established for this procurement due to the lack of certified DBE

firms.



Staff Summary & Comments

HASTUS Software Maintenance & Support 2025-24
Page 2

5.0 POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.

6.0 ECONOMIC IMPACT: This contract shall be payable through the General Fund, Information
Technology Department budget, in an amount not to exceed $1,089,936.00 for a three-year
period.

7.0 ALTERNATIVES: Reject this offer. Rejection of this offer would leave the Authority’s HASTUS
software application susceptible to potential downtime which could impact the Authority’s
ability to manage operator work performance, scheduling, daily work and payroll.

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: This procurement was discussed by the Board of Trustees at the
February 4, 2025 Organizational, Services & Performance Monitoring Committee meeting. It is
recommended that the offer from GIRO be accepted and the resolution adopted authorizing
the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer to enter into a contract.

9.0 ATTACHMENTS: None

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance with
the Procurement requirements.

/o

/(A_/// "ﬂ ‘( a /‘“') \-ﬁ)
§€l neral Manager, Ch ief E: cutwej@fﬁ-c

f




RESOLUTION NO. 2025-24

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2024-220 WITH GIRO, INC. TO PROVIDE
HASTUS SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE AND SUPPORT SERVICES FOR A
THREE-YEAR PERIOD IN A TOTAL AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $1,089,936.00
(GENERAL FUND, INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (“Authority”) currently
utilizes GIRO, Inc. (“GIRO”) licensed proprietary products (“HASTUS”) for its bid dispatch,
operator self-service, and scheduling software applications; and

WHEREAS, the HASTUS software is proprietary to GIRO, the original provider and
installer of this software; and

WHEREAS, the Authority has a recurring requirement to procure maintenance and
support for its HASTUS software system; and

WHEREAS, GIRO has offered to provide continuing maintenance and support services
for the Authority’s HASTUS bid dispatch, operator self-service, and scheduling software
applications; and

WHEREAS, R.C. 306.43(H)(3) provides that competitive procedures are not required
when the expenditure is for a renewal or renegotiation of a lease or license for
telecommunications or electronic data processing equipment, services, or systems, or for the
upgrade of such equipment, services, or systems, or for the maintenance thereof as supplied by
the original source or its successors or assigns; and

WHEREAS, the offer from GIRO, located at 75 Port-Royal Street East, Suite 500,
Montreal, QC H3L 3T1, Canada, to provide HASTUS software maintenance and support
services for a three-year period in amounts not to exceed $345,737.00 for year one,
$363,024.00 for year two, and $381,175.00 for year three, for a total contract amount not to
exceed $1,089,936.00 was received on December 3, 2024; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the offer from GIRO,
to provide maintenance and support services for the Authority’s HASTUS software applications
for a three-period, to be in the best interest of the Authority and recommends acceptance
thereof by the Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the offer from GIRO to provide maintenance and support services for
the Authority’s HASTUS software applications for a three-year period be and the same is hereby

accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with GIRO to provide maintenance and support
services for the Authority’s HASTUS software applications for a three-year period.

Section 3. That said contract will be funded through the General Fund, Information
Technology Department budget, in a total contract amount not to exceed $1,089,936.00 for a

three-year period.



Resolution No. 2025-24
Page 2

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon future funding, compliance by the contractor to the specifications and addenda,
if any; the Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees; bonding and insurance
requirements and all applicable laws relating to contractual obligations of the Authority.

Section 5. That the Authority’s Board of Trustees expects that GIRO will attempt to
exceed the 0% DBE goal assigned to this procurement.

Section 6. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: February 25, 2025

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



326

STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS

Form 100- @ Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

01-12-22

TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
CONTRACT: GENFARE SUPPORT AGREEMENT 2025-25

VENDOR:  GENFARE, LLC 2025
AMOUNT:  NOT TO EXCEED $61,425.00 FOR A PERIOD OF ONE

Date: February 20,

YEAR WITH TWO, ONE-YEAR OPTIONS IN AMOUNTS | Initiator: Management

NOT TO EXCEED $63,268.00 AND $65,166.00, L
RESPECTIVELY, FOR A TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT
NOT TO EXCEED $189,859.00
ACTION REQUEST:
Approval Review/Comment Information Only Other
1.0 PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will allow the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

2.0

3.0

4.0

(“Authority”) to enter into a contract with Genfare, LLC (“Genfare”) to provide software support
services for our fare collection equipment for a period of one year with two, one-year options.

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The Authority currently utilizes Genfare for both hardware
and software related to fare collection throughout the transit network. The Authority could not
enter into a maintenance agreement with Genfare until the system was upgraded. That
upgrade has been completed. The Revenue Department learned that Genfare will be migrating
its data storage to a cloud solution. Agencies with support agreements will receive this
migration at no additional cost. Additionally, the Genfare support agreement brings priority
customer service support/ticketing and should increase the responsiveness of Genfare.
Revenue Department staff are currently managing any probing errors manually. This
agreement will allow Genfare to assist with error handling.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: R.C. 306.43(H)(3) provides that competitive procedures
are not required when the expenditure is for a renewal or renegotiation of a lease or license for
telecommunications or electronic data processing equipment, services, or systems, or for the
upgrade of such equipment, services, or systems, or for the maintenance thereof, as supplied
by the original source or its successors or assigns. Genfare is the original provider of the
Authority’s fare collection boxes and developed the software on a proprietary basis. The
Authority has an ongoing need to have its fare collection boxes’ software serviced and

maintained.

The Procurement Department requested a proposal from Genfare on November 25, 2024.
Genfare offered to provide their gold tier support for the Authority’s fareboxes for a period of
one year in an amount not to exceed $61,425.00 with two, one-year options in amounts not to
exceed $63,268.00 and $65,166.00, respectively, for a total contract amount not to exceed
$189,859.00. The Management Information Services, Revenue, and Procurement
Departments reviewed the proposal for adherence to the technical requirements. The proposal
submitted by Genfare, as negotiated, is approximately 20% below the independent cost
estimate of $236,511.00.

A cost analysis has been performed, and the Procurement Department has determined that the
negotiated price is fair and reasonable to the Authority.

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGROUND: All Affirmative Action requirements have been
met. A 0% DBE goal was established for this procurement due to the lack of certified DBE

firms.



Staff Summary & Comments
Genfare Support Agreement 2025-25

Page 2

5.0 POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.

6.0 ECONOMIC IMPACT: This contract shall be payable through the General Fund, Management
Information Services budget, in an amount not to exceed $61,425.00 for a period of one year
with two, one-year options in amounts not to exceed $63,268.00 and $65,166.00, respectively,
for a total contract amount not to exceed $189,859.00

7.0 ALTERNATIVES: Reject this offer. Rejection of this offer would leave the Authority’s fare
collection box’s software supported with only legacy support, thereby slowing down
maintenance and operations of our fare collection equipment.

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the offer from Genfare be accepted and the
resolution adopted authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer to enter into a
contract.

9.0 ATTACHMENTS: None

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance with

the Procurement requirements.

/ |

@enpteral Manager, Chief Exécu,(if@ﬁicer

(




RESOLUTION NO. 2025-25

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2024-179 WITH GENFARE, LLC TO PROVIDE
FAREBOX COLLECTION SOFTWARE SUPPORT SERVICES FOR A PERIOD
OF ONE YEAR IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $61,425.00 WITH TWO, ONE-
YEAR OPTIONS IN AMOUNTS NOT TO EXCEED $63,268.00 AND $65,166.00,
RESPECTIVELY, FOR A TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED
$189,859.00 (GENERAL FUND, MANAGEMENT INFORMATION SERVICES
DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (“Authority”) currently
utilizes Genfare, LLC (“Genfare”) licensed proprietary products for its fare collection on all of the

Authority’s buses and trains; and

WHEREAS, the software on Genfare fareboxes is proprietary to Genfare, the original
provider and installer of this software; and

WHEREAS, the Authority upgraded to the necessary data system in 2023, allowing the
Authority to enter inter a maintenance agreement with Genfare; and

WHEREAS, Genfare has offered to provide gold tier support for the Authority’s farebox
collection software; and

WHEREAS, R.C. 306.43(H)(3) provides that competitive procedures are not required
when the expenditure is for a renewal or renegotiation of a lease or license for
telecommunications or electronic data processing equipment, services, or systems, or for the
upgrade of such equipment, services, or systems, or for the maintenance thereof as supplied by
the original source or its successors or assigns; and

WHEREAS, the offer from Genfare, located at 800 Arthur Avenue, Elk Grove Village, IL
60007, to provide software support services for a period of one year in an amount not to exceed
$61,425.00 with two, one-year options in amounts not to exceed $63,268.00 and $65,166.00,
respectively, for a total contract amount not to exceed $189,859.00 was received; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the offer from
Genfare, as negotiated, to provide software support services for the Authority’s fare collection
boxes for a period of one year with two, one-year options to be in the best interest of the
Authority and recommends acceptance thereof by the Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the offer from Genfare, as negotiated, to provide software support
services for the Authority’s fare collection boxes for a period of one year with two, one-year
options be and the same is hereby accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with Genfare, as negotiated, to provide
software support services for the Authority’s fare collection boxes for a period of one year with
two, one-year options.



Resolution No. 2025-25
Page 2

Section 3. That said contract will be funded 